
 
TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2014 

 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 
 
1. MOTION TO CONVENE INTO CLOSED SESSION (IF NECESSARY) 
 

 
2. MOTION TO RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
 
4. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
5. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST UNDER THE MUNICIPAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

ACT 
 
 
6. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
 6.1  Council Meeting Minutes October 6, 2014 
    
Recommendation 
 
THAT the minutes of the following meeting be adopted as presented: 
 

Regular Council Meeting October 6, 2014. 
 
 
7. PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 
  
8. PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS 

 
  
9. REPORTS 
 

9.1  CAO – no reports 
 
    
 9.2  CLERKS  
 
   9.2.1 REPORT NO. CL2014-31 
     By-law Enforcement  

Quarterly Activity Report 
July 1st, 2014 to September 30th, 2014 

 



Council Meeting Agenda Monday, November 3, 2014 2 

Recommendation 
 
THAT the Enforcement Activity Report for July 1st, 2014 to September 30th, 2014 be received for 
information purposes. 
 
 
   9.2.2 REPORT NO. CL2014-32 
     Proposed 2015 Council Meeting Schedule 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the following schedule for Regular Council Meetings be adopted: 
 
January 12, 2015    February 9, 2015 
 
March 9, 2015     April 13, 2015 
March 30, 2015     April 27, 2015 
 
May 11, 2015     June 1, 2015 
May 25, 2015     June 22, 2015 
 
July 20, 2015     August 31, 2015 
 
September 14, 2015   October 5, 2015 
September 28, 2015   October 19, 2015 
 
November 2, 2015     
November 23, 2015   December 7, 2015. 
 
       

9.3  FINANCE  
 
  9.3.1 REPORT NO. FIN 2014-29 

     Procurement By-law Update 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT Report FIN 2014-29, prepared by the Manager of Accounting, regarding the update to the 
Township By-Law for the Procurement of Goods and Services and Disposal of Surplus Goods, be 
received for information purposes; 
 
AND FURTHER, THAT an updated by-law be adopted, with an effective date of January 1, 2015. 
 
           

9.4  PUBLIC WORKS  
 
  9.4.1 REPORT NO. PW-2014-15 

     Public Works Activity Report 
     July - September 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Public Works Department Activity Reports for the months of July, August and 
September 2014 be received for information. 
 
 



Council Meeting Agenda Monday, November 3, 2014 3 

   9.4.2 REPORT NO. PW-2014-16 
     Proposed No Parking Zone 
     Huron Place, New Hamburg 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the following amendments be made to the Traffic and Parking By-Law: 
 

1. THAT the existing Schedule “1,” Part V – Section 3 – No Parking to said By-Law No. 2006-
44 be amended by adding reference to: 
 

 Huron Place, New Hamburg, on the west side, from Huron Street to the south end, at any 
time. 

 
 

9.5  DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  
 
  9.5.1 REPORT NO. DS 2014-23 
    September Building Statistics 

 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the September 2014 Building Statistics be received for information.  

 
 
  9.5.2 REPORT NO. DS 2014-24 
    Release of Agreement – Ross Roth Sand & Gravel Inc. 

 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Township release Agreement WR701396 between the Township of Wilmot and Ross 
Roth Sand & Gravel Inc. from the title of Pt Lot 22, Concession 3, Block A (PIN 22204-0067 LT). 
 
 

9.6  FACILITIES AND RECREATION SERVICES  
 
   9.6.1 REPORT NO. PRD 2014-13 
     Facilities & Recreation Services Quarterly Activity Reports 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Facilities & Recreation Services Activity Reports for the third quarter of 2014 be 
received for information. 
 
 
   9.6.2 REPORT NO. PRD 2014-14 
     Tender 2014-13 Supply Electric Ice Resurfacer 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT Tender 2014-13 to supply one new Electric Ice Resurfacer, be awarded to Joe Johnson 
Equipment for the bid price of $152,731.58 net of the HST rebate. 
   
 
 
 



Council Meeting Agenda Monday, November 3, 2014 4 

 9.7  FIRE  
 
   9.7.1 REPORT NO. FI 2014-06 
     Quarterly Activity Report 
 
Recommendation 

 
THAT the Fire Department Activity Report for the third quarter of 2014 be received for information 
purposes. 

  
     
9.8  CASTLE KILBRIDE  
 
  9.8.1 REPORT NO. CK2014-04 
    Quarterly Activity Report – July, August & September 2014 

 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Castle Kilbride Activity Report for the months of July, August and September be 
accepted for information purposes. 

 
      

10. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
10.1 Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs – Ontario Community Infrastructure 

Fund – Formula-Based Funding Allocation Notice 
10.2 Grand River Conservation Authority – GRCA Current, October 2014 

 
Recommendation 
 
THAT Correspondence Items 10.1 to 10.2 be received for information. 
 
 
11. BY-LAWS  
 
11.1 By-law No. 2014-44, No Parking on a Portion of Huron Place, Amendment to By-law 2006-

44 Being a By-law to Regulate Traffic and Parking on Highways 
11.2 By-law No. 2014-45, Procurement By-law Update 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT By-law Nos. 2014-44 and 2014-45 be read a first, second and third time and finally passed in 
Open Council. 
 
 
12. NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 
 
13. QUESTIONS/NEW BUSINESS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
14. BUSINESS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
15. CONFIRMATORY BY-LAW 
 



Council Meeting Agenda Monday, November 3, 2014 5 

15.1 By-law No. 2014-46 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT By-law No. 2014-46 to Confirm the Proceedings of Council at its Meeting held on November 
3, 2014 be introduced, read a first, second, and third time and finally passed in Open Council. 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT we do now adjourn to meet again at the call of the Mayor. 



 
TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2014 

 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 
Members Present: Mayor L. Armstrong, Councillors A. Junker, P. Roe, B, Fisher, J. Gerber,  

M. Murray 
 
Staff Present: Chief Administrative Officer G. Whittington, Director of Clerk’s Services  

B. McLeod, Deputy Clerk D. Mittelholtz, Director of Public Works G. Charbonneau, 
Director of Facilities and Recreation Services S. Nancekivell, Director of 
Development Services H. O’Krafka, Fire Chief M. Raine, Director of Finance R. Tse, 
Curator/Director of Castle Kilbride T. Loch, Manager of Accounting P. Kelly, 
Planner/EDO A. Martin, Roads Foreman D. Kleine 

 
 
1. MOTION TO CONVENE INTO CLOSED SESSION (IF NECESSARY) 
 

 
2. MOTION TO RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
 
4. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

4.1  REPORT 9.4.1 – REPORT NO. PW-14-14 Queen Street, New Dundee 
 

Public Support for Report No. PW-14-14 
 
Resolution No. 2014-191 
 
Moved by:  A. Junker               Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
THAT the above document received in regards to REPORT 9.4.1 – REPORT NO. PW-14-14 be 
added to the Agenda. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
5. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST UNDER THE MUNICIPAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

ACT 
 
None disclosed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, October 6, 2014 2 

 
6. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
 6.1  Council Meeting Minutes September 22, 2014 
    
Resolution No. 2014-192 
 
Moved by:  B. Fisher               Seconded by: P. Roe 
 
THAT the minutes of the following meeting be adopted as presented: 
 

Regular Council Meeting September 22, 2014. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
7. PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 
 7.1  REPORT NO. DS 2014-22 
   Zone Change Application 06/14 
   Patrick Forristal 
   Part of Lot 2, Concession 3, Block B 
   Parts 39-42 and 74-75, Plan 58R-3682 
   16-1182 Berlett’s Road, Sunfish Lake 
 
Resolution No. 2014-193 
 
Moved by:  M. Murray               Seconded by: J. Gerber 
 
THAT Zone Change Application 06/14 made by Patrick Forristal, affecting Part of Lot 2, 
Concession 3, Block B, to pass a temporary use by-law to permit a second seasonal dwelling for a 
period of one year be approved, subject to the following: 
 

1. THAT the implementing by-law specifically limit occupancy to only one seasonal dwelling 
at any time. 

 
CARRIED. 

 
Mayor Armstrong declared the public meeting open and stated that Council would hear all interested 
parties who wished to speak. He indicated that if the decision of Council is appealed to the Ontario 
Municipal Board, the Board has the power to dismiss an appeal if individuals do not speak at the public 
meeting or make written submissions before the by-law is passed. 
 
Mayor Armstrong stated that persons attending as delegations at this meeting are required to leave their 
names and addresses which will become part of the public record and advised that this information may 
be posted on the Township’s official website. 
 
The Planner/EDO highlighted the report. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong asked if there were questions of a technical nature from Council.  There were none. 
 
Mayor Armstrong asked if the applicant wished to address Council and he did not. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong asked if there were any questions from Council.  There were none. 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, October 6, 2014 3 

Mayor L. Armstrong asked twice if anyone else wished to address Council, and in the absence of any 
comments, declared the public meeting to be closed. 
 
Councillor P. Roe commented that he agreed with the condition attached to the recommendation to 
minimize the impact on the area. 
 
 
8. PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS 

 
  
9. REPORTS 
 

9.1  CAO – no reports 
 
    
 9.2  CLERKS  
 
   9.2.1 REPORT NO. CL2014-30 
     Encroachment Agreement  

3614 Carmel-Koch Rd. 
 
Resolution No. 2014-194 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe               Seconded by: B. Fisher 
 
THAT  The Township of Wilmot enter into an encroachment agreement with the owner of 3614 
Carmel-Koch Rd, Part Lot 22, Block B, Concession 2, Township of Wilmot, subject to the owner / 
applicant bearing all costs associated with the preparation of such agreement, and further, that 
the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to execute all associated documentation. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
The Director of Clerk’s Services highlighted the report. 
 
     

9.3  FINANCE  
 
  9.3.1 REPORT NO. FIN 2014-27 

     Statement of Operations as of September 30, 2014 (un-audited) 
 
Resolution No. 2014-195 
 
Moved by:  A. Junker               Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
THAT the Statement of Operations as of September 30, 2014, as prepared by the Manager of 
Accounting, be received for information purposes. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
The Manager of Accounting highlighted the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, October 6, 2014 4 

   9.3.2 REPORT NO. FIN 2014-28 
     Capital Program Review as of September 30, 2014 (un-audited) 
 
Resolution No. 2014-196 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe               Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
THAT the Capital Program Review as of September 30, 2014, as prepared by the Manager of 
Accounting, be received for information purposes. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
The Manager of Accounting highlighted the report. 
 
    

9.4  PUBLIC WORKS  
 
  9.4.1 REPORT NO. PW-14-14 

     Queen Street, New Dundee 
 
Resolution No. 2014-197 
 
Moved by:  A. Junker               Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
THAT the following amendments be made to the Traffic and Parking By-law: 
 

1. THAT the existing Schedule “21”, Part XVII – Section 1 – Heavy Truck Prohibitions – No 
Heavy Trucks to said By-law No. 2006-44 be amended by adding reference to: 
 

 Queen Street, New Dundee, from Bridge Street to Oxford-Waterloo Road at any 
time 
 

 Hallman Road, from Bridge Street to Oxford-Waterloo Road, at any time 
 

CARRIED, UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
The Director of Public Works highlighted the report. 
  
Registered Delegation 
 
Nelson Smith 
 
Mr. Smith read from a written submission that he supplied to Council and was added to the Agenda by 
Resolution No. 2014-191 as Public Support for Report No. PW-14-14 (attached as Appendix A). 
 
Councillor A. Junker thanked the delegation and expressed his hope for Council’s support on the 
recommendation.  He noted that this action was brought about by trying other options which were not 
effective. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong concurred that other approaches were attempted but did not work which prompts 
Council to have to try another way to remedy the situation. 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, October 6, 2014 5 

9.5  DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – no further reports  
 
     
9.6  FACILITIES AND RECREATION SERVICES – no reports 

 
   
 9.7  FIRE – no reports 

 
      
9.8  CASTLE KILBRIDE – no reports 
 
      

10. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

 10.1 WALDA – Letter of Appreciation for Sponsorship of Q’ing for Life BBQ 
   
Resolution No. 2014-198 
 
Moved by: P. Roe                 Seconded by: J. Gerber 
 
THAT Correspondence items 10.1 be received for information. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
 10.2 Association of Municipalities of Ontario – Double Hatter Firefighters 
 
Resolution No. 2014-199 
 
Moved by:  M. Murray               Seconded by: B. Fisher 
 
WHEREAS the training and certification of professional firefighters is established and mandated 
by the Province of Ontario under the Fire Protection and Prevention Act, 1997; 
 
AND WHEREAS it is the responsibility of municipalities to establish fire departments and appoint 
fire chiefs to provide fire protection services as they determine may be necessary in accordance 
with their needs and circumstances; 
 
AND WHEREAS many Ontario municipalities rely on both full time and volunteer firefighters in 
order to provide fire protection; 
 
AND WHEREAS the International Association of Fire Fighters (“IAFF”) Constitution prohibits full 
time firefighters from volunteering as firefighters in another municipal jurisdiction (i.e. “Double 
Hatting”); 
 
AND WHEREAS the IAFF’s stance on Double Hatting is specifically prohibited by legislation in 
almost all provinces in Canada and much of the United States; 
 
AND WHEREAS a volunteer firefighter in the Innisfil Fire and Rescue Service is challenging the 
IAFF ban on Double Hatting and their expulsions from that union because of his desire to 
continue volunteering while being employed as a full-time firefighter in another jurisdiction; 
AND WHEREAS the right of individuals to use their free time in service of their community is a 
fundamental right in a free, open and democratic society. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the Township of Wilmot requests that the 
Province of Ontario amend the Fire Protection and Prevention Act, 1997 with respect to salaried 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, October 6, 2014 6 

firefighters who also work as volunteer firefighters, such that if a person is denied membership in 
an association of firefighters, is expelled or disciplined by the association or engages in 
reasonable dissent within the association in connection with this kind of dual role, the association 
is not permitted to require the employer to refuse to employ the person as a salaried firefighter, 
terminate his or her employment as a salaried firefighter or refuse to assign the person to fire 
protection services. 
 
This resolution should be sent to the following: 
 
• Hon. Kathleen Wynne, Premier of Ontario 
• Hon. Madeline Meilleur, Attorney General 
• Hon. Kevin Flynn, Minister of Labour 
• Hon. Yasir Naqvi, Minister of Community Safety and Correctional Services 
• Hon. Ted McMeekin, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing. 
 

CARRIED, UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Councillor M. Murray asserted that this is an important recommendation after years of controversy.  He 
noted that the full time fire fighters have very valuable skills to share with volunteer fire fighters. 
 
 
11. BY-LAWS  
 
11.1 By-law No. 2014-40, Zone Change Application 06/14, Patrick Forristal, 16-1182 Berlett’s Rd, 

Sunfish Lake 
11.2 By-law No. 2014-41, Being a By-law to Amend By-law 2006-44 – No Heavy Trucks – Queen 

Street, New Dundee 
11.3 By-law No. 2014-42, A By-law to Authorize the Execution of an Agreement with the owner 

of 3614 Carmel-Koch Rd 
 
Resolution No. 2014-200 
 
Moved by: A. Junker                Seconded by: P. Roe 
 
THAT By-law Nos. 2014-40, 2014-41 and 2014-42 be read a first, second and third time and finally 
passed in Open Council. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
12. NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 
 
13. QUESTIONS/NEW BUSINESS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
13.1 Councillor P. Roe presented a request that staff be directed to prepare a letter further to the 

correspondence attached as Appendix B in favour of the access to the internet for rural residence 
through rural broadband. 

 
Council directed staff to review the information and the proposed changes to rural broadband. 

 
Mayor L. Armstrong noted that whereas the Township and its residents may not be directly 
affected that this matter may affect many of the neighbouring municipalities and that the 
Township should offer support. 

 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, October 6, 2014 7 

Councillor P. Roe commented that it is unknown at this time exactly who may be affected by the 
proposed changes. 

 
13.2 Councillor P. Roe informed Council that the convenience store in St. Agatha is under new 

ownership by a local resident and that he extending his congratulations to that resident. 
 
 
14.1 MOTION TO CONVENE INTO CLOSED SESSION  
 
Resolution No. 2014-201 
 
Moved by:  J. Gerber               Seconded by: P. Roe 
 
THAT a Closed Meeting of Council be now held in accordance with Section 239 (2) (b) of the 
Municipal Act, 2001, for the purposes of considering the following matters: 
 

2 (b) personal matters about an identifiable individual.  
 

CARRIED. 
 
 

15 MOTION TO RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
 
Resolution No. 2014-202 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe               Seconded by: B. Fisher 
 
That we reconvene into Open Session of Council.  
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
16. CONFIRMATORY BY-LAW 
 

16.1 By-law No. 2014-43 
 
Resolution No. 2014-203 
 
Moved by:  M. Murray               Seconded by: P. Roe 
 
THAT By-law No. 2014-43 to Confirm the Proceedings of Council at its Meeting held on October 6, 
2014 be introduced, read a first, second, and third time and finally passed in Open Council. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, October 6, 2014 8 

17. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Resolution No. 2014-204 
 
Moved by:  A. Junker               Seconded by: P. Roe 
 
THAT we do now adjourn to meet again at the call of the Mayor. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
               Mayor  
 
 
_______________________________  
               Clerk 



dawnm
Typewritten Text
Appendix A





10/6/2014

1

Support for Staff Report
PW‐14‐14

Queen Street New Dundee

Petition to The Region of Waterloo



10/6/2014

2

“5‐way Stop”

• Many positive comments from New Dundee 
residents

• Visitors to New Dundee have noted the 
improved intersection safety

• 5th Stop sign essential and needs to be made 
“permanent”

• We ask Council to work with the Region to 
ensure the change from “Yield” to “Stop” is 
made permanent

Residential Queen Street



10/6/2014

3

One of the many routes using 
Queen Street

One of Many Routes around 
New Dundee



10/6/2014

4

Important Points

• Staff’s recommendation is to implement a No 
Heavy Truck Zone

• Other solutions over the past 2 years have all 
failed

• Fiscally responsible to protect the road 
infrastructure within the Township

• Recommendation aligns with the Township’s 
Strategic Plan

Thank You.



dawnm
Typewritten Text
Appendix B







dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.2.1









dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.2.2





dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.3.1







dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.4.1





















dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.4.2







dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.5.1







dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.5.2





dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.6.1











dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.6.2









dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.7.1





















dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.8.1









dawnm
Typewritten Text
10.1

















October 2014  •  Volume 19, Number 9

GRCA General Membership

Chair Jane Mitchell

Vice-Chair Vic Prendergast

Townships of Amaranth, East
Garafraxa, Melancthon and South-
gate and Town of Grand Valley

Tom Nevills 

Townships of Mapleton 
and Wellington North Pat Salter 

Township of Centre Wellington 
Joanne Ross-Zuj

Town of Erin, Townships of
Guelph/Eramosa and Puslinch

John Brennan

City of Guelph
Bob Bell, Maggie Laidlaw

Region of Waterloo
Les Armstrong, Todd Cowan, 

Jan d’Ailly, Rob Deutschmann,
Jean Haalboom, Ross Kelterborn,

Geoff Lorentz, Claudette Miller,
Jane Mitchell, Warren Stauch

Municipality of North Perth 
and Township of Perth East 

George Wicke

Halton Region J. Barry Lee

City of Hamilton Jeanette Jamieson

Oxford County Bruce Banbury

County of Brant
Brian Coleman, Steve Schmitt

City of Brantford 
Robert Hillier, Vic Prendergast

Haldimand and Norfolk Counties 
Lorne Boyko, Fred Morison

GRCA Current

www.grandriver.ca Grand River Conservation Authority

Hydro corridor restoration
A hydro corridor restoration project is taking

place at the GRCA Administration Centre in
Cambridge.

The project is expected to reduce the number of
non-native invasive shrubs in the corridor, reduce
the need for periodic herbicide treatments and
improve aesthetics. It will also establish a seed
source collection area for native plants and pro-
vide a demonstration site for alternative hydro
corridor maintenance. 

The area was cleared in August and will be
seeded with native grasses and wildflowers in late
fall. 

Five vacant houses 
to be demolished

The GRCA plans to demolish five vacant houses
on GRCA property. 

These buildings are located at Luther Marsh,
Everton, Puslinch Township and two at Guelph
Lake. Most of the buildings have been vacant for
some time and would be very costly to repair. An
additional house on the Apps’ Mill property was
also slated for demolition. However it was
destroyed by fire a couple days before the GRCA
board meeting. 

Municipalities have been consulted regarding
these proposed demolitions which are expected to
cost $180,000 to $230,000. They will save the
GRCA money in the longer term. None of these
buildings are considered suitable to be put up for
sale because of the location or other issues.

Water Management Plan
endorsed by partners

A plan to address water supply, water quality
and flooding in the Grand River watershed has
been endorsed by water management agencies
from all levels of government and is ready for
implementation. 

The Grand River Watershed Water Management

Plan has been five years in the making. It’s a prod-
uct of a collaborative partnership of municipali-
ties, provincial ministries, the federal government,
Six Nations of the Grand River and the Grand
River Conservation Authority. 

Copies of the plan and more information are
available on www.grandriver.ca/wmp.

Representatives of the plan partners met in Sep-
tember at the GRCA head office to mark the com-
pletion of the plan and to discuss its implementa-
tion.  The plan includes 43 recommendations and
165 action items that the partners have already
agreed to undertake. The action items respond to
the three key challenges facing the watershed
today: high population growth, extensive agricul-
ture and a changing climate. 

As the action items are implemented there will
be improvements in water quality in the Grand
River and its tributaries. In addition, that will also
have a positive impact on the health of Lake Erie
because the Grand is one of the largest sources of
nutrient pollution in the eastern basin of the lake. 

New boardwalk
at Laurel Creek Park

The Kitchener-Grand River Rotary Club com-
pleted a new boardwalk at Laurel Creek that was
used at the Mud Puppy Trail Race in September. 

About 250 metres of new trail now connect the
boardwalk to the trail system. The boardwalk is on
the green trail in the park brochure. The new
water crossing means that an old route from a
number of years ago has been reopened. 

This is a significant improvement at the park
and is the first of many trail enhancement projects
that are expected at Laurel Creek in coming years. 

Herbicide used 
to remove invasive plants

Portions of Snyder’s Flats Conservation Area in
Woolwich Township were closed to the public
during the week of Sept. 29 while a herbicide was
used to control an outbreak of phragmites, an

dawnm
Typewritten Text
10.2



This issue of GRCA Current was pub-
lished in October 2014.

It is a summary of the September busi-
ness conducted by the Grand River Con-
servation Authority board and commit-
tees as well as other noteworthy hap-
penings and topics of interest. 

The Grand River Conservation Authority
welcomes the photocopying,
forwarding and distribution of GRCA
Current. 

Next board meeting: Friday, Oct.24 at
9:30 a.m., GRCA Administration Centre.

Reports mentioned in GRCA Current: 
www.grandriver.ca/MeetingReports.

For coming events, please see
www.grandriver.ca/Calendar.

The August-September issue of Grand
Actions newsletter is available at:
www.grandriver.ca/GrandActions

Follow the GRCA:PO Box 729, 400 Clyde Road, Cambridge, Ontario  N1R 5W6  (519) 621-2761

invasive plant species.

The affected sections of the trail network
within the conservation area were marked as
closed. GRCA staff will be applying the her-
bicide glyphosate, which is better known by
the trade name Roundup, that has been
adopted by conservation organizations as a
safe and effective way to remove invasive
species.

In most areas, the herbicide will be applied
by hand to individual plants. Some larger
areas will be tackled with backpack-style
sprayers.

Phragmites australis, also known as Euro-
pean common reed, is a species that came to
North America from Eurasia. The plant
spreads quickly and out-competes native
species for water and nutrients. It releases
toxins from its roots into the soil to hinder
the growth and kill surrounding plants.

Warm wet September 
September was wet with most rain falling

during two storms early in the month.

The first rainstorm was Sept. 5 to 6 and
widespread. However the central areas
received the heaviest rainfall while very little
rain fell in the headwaters area.  Less than a
week later, a second weather event covering
the entire watershed resulted in saturated
conditions and high runoff across the water-
shed. Shand Dam received the most rain in
September with 187 mm, more than double
the long-term average of 81 mm. The GRCA
issued three warning messages in September.

September was also warm with an average
of 14.5 degrees, about 0.5 degrees warmer
than usual.

Reservoirs were above the normal operat-
ing range for the time of year with the excep-
tion of Conestogo, which needed to be
drawn down due to maintenance on the dam
gates that was planned for early October. 

Ice storm funding
request update

The GRCA has received an application
package from the Ministry of Municipal
Affairs and Housing to be used to submit a
claim for the ice store cleanup costs.

The ice storm took place in December
2013 and GRCA forestry staff and contrac-
tors have been working to clean up the dam-
age to trees that resulted from this storm.

This was an unanticipated expense for this
year’s budget. However, the GRCA hopes
that through this program, the province will
provide financial assistance for the clean up. 

The deadline for submitting claims has
been extended from Oct. 31 to Dec. 31,
2014.

300,000 trees available
for spring 2015

The GRCA has an inventory of 300,000
trees available to private landowners for
spring 2015.

Trees help improve the water quality in
many ways. These trees are available to rural
landowners with property that is greater
than one hectare (2.5 acres) exclusive of
buildings, within the Grand River watershed. 

Landowners who plan to plant their own
trees can purchase a minimum order  of 200
seedlings or 20 saplings or potted plants.
They can oder online or by mail anytime
before March 1 for spring pick up at the
GRCA. Orders opened Oct. 2 and the best
selection is early on, as some more popular
species sell out.

But for plantings that will be done by
GRCA staff, the deadline is Dec. 1. The min-
imum order is 500 seedlings or 30 saplings

or potted plants. A site visit by a member of
the GRCA staff is a necessary first step prior
to Dec. 1.

This is part of the GRCA’s long-term com-
mitment to increase tree cover within the
Grand River watershed. Information about
funding assistance for trees through a variety
of programs is also provided by GRCA staff. 

Hundreds of Grade 4 students from Haldimand County, Six Nations of the Grand River and Mis-
sissaugas of the New Credit attended the first ever Haldimand Children’s Water Festival that took

place Oct. 1 and 2 at Taquanyah Nature Centre. This is the third such festival within the Grand
River watershed. It was a project initiated by the Grand River Conservation Foundation. 







Page | 1  
 

The Corporation of the 
Township of Wilmot 

 
By-law Number 2014-45 

 
BEING A BY-LAW TO PROVIDE FOR PROCUREMENT OF GOODS AND SERVICES AND THE 

DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS GOODS 
 
WHEREAS the Council for the Corporation of the Township of Wilmot has deemed it desirable to have a 
by-law to provide for fair, transparent and accountable purchasing and tendering procedures and thereby 
to protect Council, vendors and staff involved in the process by providing clear direction and 
accountabilities; and 
 
WHEREAS pursuant to Section 270 (1) 3 of the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, c. 25, a municipality and a 
local board shall adopt policies with respect to its procurement of goods and services; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council for the Corporation of the Township of Wilmot enacts as follows: 
 
PART I – DEFINITIONS: 
 
1. In this By-law: 

a. “Authority” or “Authorized” means the legal right to conduct tasks outlined in this By-law as 
directed by Council and delegated to Department Heads.  “Authorized purchases” are those 
that have prior approval of Council either through resolution or through the Annual budget. 

b. “Authorized Requistioner” means a person authorized in writing by the Department Head or 
Designate to make purchases under the limits prescribed within this By-law. 

c. “CAO” means the Chief Administrative Officer of the Corporation of the Township of Wilmot 
or designate. 

d. “Clerk” means the Director of Clerk Services of the Corporation of the Township of Wilmot or 
designate. 

e. “Consultant” means a person or firm, who by virtue of a particular expertise, is hired by the 
Corporation to undertake a specific task or assignment that may include, but is not limited to 
designing specification or preparing plans or programs. 

f. “Contract” means any formal legal agreement for supply of goods, services, equipment or 
construction. 

g. “Corporation” or “Township” means the Corporation of the Township of Wilmot 
h. “Council” means the Municipal Council of the Corporation of the Township of Wilmot 
i. “Department” means any Department within the Corporation of the Township of Wilmot 
j. “Department Head” means a member of the Senior Management Team. 
k. “Designate” means a person authorized in writing by the Department Head or by the CAO or 

Clerk or Treasurer to act on his/her behalf, for the purposes of this By-law. 
l. “Emergency” means an event that occurs, which in the opinion of the CAO or designate, 

requires immediate repair or replacement of equipment, services, or facilities in order to 
maintain a required public service or to prevent danger to life, limb or property within the 
Township of Wilmot 

m. “Goods and Services” means all supplies, materials or equipment and related procurement 
services. This may include installation, training, inspection, maintenance and repairs and 
related procurement services, but does not include land purchases, land sales and property 
leases. 

n. “Lowest Ultimate Cost” means the costs that results in the lowest cost of ownership, 
operation or purchase to the Corporation.  This cost is derived from the consideration of all 
factors, such as price, quality, service, terms, conditions and warranties. 

o. “Mayor” means the elected Mayor of the Corporation or the person duly appointed to act in 
place of the Mayor. 

p. “Procedures” means internal instructions or guidelines to Departments, approved by the 
Senior Management Team. 

q. “Proposal” means an offer to supply goods or services on which end results are outlined but 
no detailed specifications given to the Bidders as to the goods or how the work is to be 
performed, that is obtained through a formal Request for Proposal (RFP). 

r. “Purchasing Agent” means a Department Head or designate. 
s. “Procurement Analyst” means the Accounting/Procurement Analyst of the Corporation of 

the Township of Wilmot. 
t. “Purchase ID” means the individually assigned purchasing identification for each authorized 

requisitioner of the Corporation. 
u. “Purchase Order” means the legal document that is the Corporation’s commitment to the 

supplier for the value of the goods or services ordered.  It is also the supplier’s authority to 
ship and charge for the good specified on the order.  A “Blanket Purchase Order” is an 
agreement between the Township and a supplier to sell goods for a specified period of time 
with a dollar limitation that is prepared by the Procurement Analyst under the authority of the 
Treasurer. 

v. “Quotation” means a request for prices on specific goods or services obtained formally 
through a Request for Quotations (RFQ) or informally from selected sources. 

w. “Receiver” means an individual(s) designated by the Purchasing Agent to accept shipment(s) 
on behalf of the Corporation of the Township of Wilmot. 

x. “Relationship” means a parent, spouse, child, brother or sister.  



Page | 2  
 

y. “Requisition” means a written or electronically transmitted request on an approved form, 
authorized by a purchasing agent, sent to the Treasurer to procure goods or services. 

z. “Responsible” means a Bidder or Offerer who is deemed to be fully technically and 
financially capable of supplying the goods or services requested in the solicitation. 

aa. “Responsive” means a Bidder or Offerer who correctly and completely responds to all of the 
significant requirements outlined in the solicitation. 

bb. “Senior Management Team” means the Senior Management Team of the Corporation of the 
Township of Wilmot. 

cc. “Tender” means an offer in writing by way of a Call for Tender to execute certain specified 
work or to supply certain specified goods or services at a specific rate in response to the 
information contained in the Call for Tender. 

dd. “Treasurer” means the Director of Finance/Treasurer of the Corporation of the Township of 
Wilmot or designate. 

 
PART II – OBJECTIVE 
 
2. The objectives of this By-law are to establish and maintain a high level of confidence in the 

purchasing process by ensuring that the Township of Wilmot’s procurement of the goods and 
services necessary to provide the programs and services of the municipality is carried out in an open, 
fair, consistent, efficient and competitive manner that strikes a balance between public accountability, 
competition, quality and innovation. Therefore, the Township of Wilmot is committed to: 

a. Basing all acquisition decisions for goods on total acquisition costs from suppliers who meet 
the Township’s requirements for quality, delivery and warranty; 

b. Ensuring that the Township’s requirements for goods and services are met through an open 
and fair process that provides the highest possible degree of competition and value to the 
Township; 

c. Encouraging innovation in purchasing and acquisition whether it be through partnerships, 
purchasing co-operatives, joint contracts or any other mechanism that best meets the 
interests of the municipality while maintaining the integrity of this By-Law; 

d. Ensuring when and where appropriate, environmental consideration is given to the purchases 
made by the Township; 

e. Ensuring when and where appropriate, consideration is given to the accessibility of the goods 
and services for persons with disabilities; 

f. Ensuring that purchasing decisions are free of any conflict of interest between suppliers and 
Members of Council, officials or employees and members of their immediate families; and, 

g. Ensuring that, all other things being equal, the Township will seek to purchase Canadian 
goods and services from local (i.e. Wilmot Township), regional, provincial or national sources, 
in that order. 

 
PART III – AUTHORITY 
 
3. This By-law authorizes Department Heads and their designate(s) to act as legal Purchasing Agents of 

the Corporation of the Township of Wilmot. 
 

4. The signatures of the Treasurer, CAO or the Mayor and Clerk when legally required, are necessary 
on all agreements to purchase, lease or contract for goods and services. The Treasurer shall have 
signing authority up to $50,000.00.  The CAO shall have signing authority up to $50,000.00 if less 
than 3 competitive quotations are received. Except where delegation of authority has been expressly 
assigned by By-Law, the Mayor and Clerk shall be authorized to sign contracts over $50,000.00 as 
approved by Council. 

 
5. Where any tender or contract has been authorized under this By-law, the CAO may authorize 

disbursement of additional funds provided that the additional funds: 
 
a. Shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the original contract price; 
b. Are available within the program budget; and 
c. Are required to complete works that are necessary as part of the original contract. 
 

6. The Procurement Analyst shall monitor adherence to the provisions of this By-law and the procedures 
adopted for its use.  Failures to comply with the provisions of the By-law and procedures shall be 
reported to the Treasurer.  Continued non-compliance shall be reported to the CAO and may lead to 
disciplinary action up to, and including, dismissal. 

 
7. The Procurement Analyst shall assist Purchasing Agents in maintaining good vendor relations and in 

the conduct of all negotiations with vendors, subject to the other provisions of this By-law.   
 
8. Throughout the bidding process, all inquiries regarding materials, prices, services, delivery, terms, 

conditions and adjustments, are to be conducted by or through the Procurement Analyst. 
 

PART IV – PURCHASING GUIDELINES 
 
9. Responsibilities of Purchasing Agents 

a. To ensure that, except otherwise stipulated, any purchase of goods, services or equipment 
shall be made on a competitive basis, in keeping with accepted public purchasing practices 
and in accordance with applicable federal, provincial and municipal laws; 



Page | 3  
 

b. To ensure that purchases are made at the lowest ultimate cost, with due consideration to the 
importance of quality and service, and in accordance with the approved policies and 
procedures of the Corporation; 

c. To, wherever possible, promote and coordinate standardization of goods with the cooperation 
of all Departments and where beneficial to the Corporation, participate with other levels of 
government and other local agencies in co-operative purchasing plans 

d. To be responsible for the return of all supplies and termination of all contracts that do not 
meet the specifications set out in the Purchase Order or contract 
 

10. Except in accordance with this By-law, Purchasing Agents shall not: 
a. Order goods that have not been provided for in the annual budgets of each department; 
b. Split a purchase to avoid any of the purchasing processes outlined in this By-law; 
c. Make or authorize personal purchases; 
d. Solicit in-house bids in competition with outside firms; and 
e. Utilize the Purchase ID of another Purchasing Agent to avoid any of the purchasing 

processes outlined in this By-law. 
 

11. The Corporation of the Township of Wilmot reserves the right in its sole discretion, to reject any or all 
bids, and the lowest or highest bid, as the case may be, will not necessarily be accepted. 
 

PART V – PURCHASING PROCESSES 
 
12. The Methods of Procurement for the Corporation of the Township of Wilmot are summarized in 

‘Schedule A’ of this By-law. 
 

13. Dollar amounts shown in this By-law setting parameters for the purchasing process, except otherwise 
stated, shall be the total cost excluding taxes and freight. 

 
14. Payment Vouchers are to be utilized only in cases where the payee does not issue an invoice for the 

goods or services rendered or in the case of a refund from the Corporation. 
 

EXEMPTIONS 
 

15. The following items are exempt from the purchasing process and Purchase Order requirements under 
Part V of this By-law, and will be paid by the Treasurer upon an invoice signed by a Purchasing Agent 
certifying the goods or services have been received along with appropriate general ledger coding: 
 

 
Exemption Description 
Petty Cash Items Purchases made in accordance with the Petty 

Cash Policy 
Blanket Purchase Order Items Items that have been placed under a blanket 

purchase order by the Procurement Analyst as per 
the authority of the Treasurer 

Conference, Training and Seminars Conferences, Conventions, Courses, Seminars, 
Memberships, Staff Workshops, Subscriptions 

Refundable Employee Expenses Meal Allowances, Miscellaneous Non-Travel, 
Travel Expenses 

Employer’s General Expenses Payroll Deductions, Licenses, Debenture 
Payments, Insurance Premiums, Grants to 
Agencies, Damage Claims, Petty Cash 
Replenishment, Tax Remittances, Building Lease 
Payments, Postage, Freight Charges, Township 
Vehicle Fuel and Maintenance, Charges to or from 
other Government Agencies 

Professional and Special Services Laboratory Services, Legal Services, Temporary 
Help, Banking and Investment Fees, Real Estate 
Fees, Audit Fees, Insurance Adjuster Fees, 
Honorarium, Municipal Election Costs 

Utilities Water, Wastewater, Hydro, Gas, Telephone, Cell 
Phone and Internet Service Charges 

 
 
 
LOW-DOLLAR VALUE ITEMS 
 

16. Authorized requistioners are permitted to make direct acquisitions for items with a value less than 
$1,000.00, provided that they utilize the small- order purchasing procedure outlined in ‘Schedule B’ of 
this By-law.  

 
17. Purchasing Agents are permitted to make direct acquisitions for items with a value between 

$1,000.00 and $4,999.99, provided that they use their individual Purchase ID.  
 



Page | 4  
 

18. Where the requirement for goods or services has an estimated value between $5,000.00 and 
$19,999.99, the purchasing agent, with a properly signed or electronically transmitted Purchase 
Order, is empowered to make the purchase from such suppliers and upon such terms and conditions 
that are best for the Corporation. The purchasing agent is to solicit a minimum of three written 
quotations wherever possible.  These quotations must be submitted to the Procurement Analyst with 
the signed Purchase Order.  Where it is deemed that it is not possible to obtain the number of 
quotations specified under this section, an explanation must be provided with the signed Purchase 
Order. 
  

19. Authorized requistioners are permitted to use Corporate Credit Cards up to the limit prescribed on the 
card that has been assigned to them.  The maximum credit limit for a Corporate Credit Cards is 
assigned based on the decision of the Treasurer. 
 
INFORMAL AND FORMAL SEALED QUOTATIONS: 
 

20. Where the requirement for goods or services is estimated to cost $20,000.00 or more, but less than 
$50,000.00, the Purchasing Agent will work with the Treasurer and the purchase may be made on the 
authority of the Treasurer provided that a minimum of three competitive quotations have been 
obtained.  Formal Sealed Quotations will be called if deemed beneficial by the Treasurer.  Sealed 
Quotations will be opened by the Purchasing Agent and the Procurement Analyst, or designate(s). 
 

21. Where information supplied indicates that three quotations cannot be obtained for the goods or 
services estimated to cost $20,000.00 or more, but less than $50,000.00, justification to and 
approval to make the purchase is required by the CAO. 

 
TENDERS 
 

22. All requirements for goods, services, equipment or construction estimated to cost $50,000.00 or 
more, shall be obtained by sealed tender or proposal and shall be awarded by Council approval. 
 

23. In the case of large capital projects where a project manager/general contractor is hired, the 
requirements outlined in Section 22 will only apply to the initial tendering for project management 
purposes. Subsequent to the award of contract through Council approval, the project 
manager/general contractor will work with the Purchasing Agent to hire any requisite sub-trades. 
 

24. The Procurement Analyst with the assistance of the Purchasing Agent shall distribute (hard copy or 
digital copy when applicable), and receive all tender, proposal and consultant calls. The Procurement 
Analyst shall monitor and print additional hard copies for distribution as required.  The Purchasing 
Agent will be responsible to obtain any drawings from outside consultants. 

 
25. The Procurement Analyst shall provide the tender documents upon every Bidders request 

accompanied by payment of any required fee thereto. 
 

26. The Treasurer, in consultation with the Purchasing Agent, will determine whether or not Performance 
and Labour and Materials bonding, tender deposits or bid bonds are required, subject to the following: 

 
a. Bid Bonds and Performance and Labour and Material bonding will be required for purchases 

over $200,000.00; 
b. Purchase less than $200,000.00 may include bonding requirements if it is deemed by the 

Treasurer to be in the best interest of the Township; 
c. Where tender deposits or bid bonds are required, the Treasurer shall determine the amount 

and form of deposit; 
d. Under no circumstances will interest be paid on tender deposits; 
e. The Treasurer or designate shall retain, in safekeeping, the deposits of all tenders until an 

award has been determined, accepted, and a contract executed; 
f. Should a tender not be awarded, the Treasurer or designate shall forthwith arrange the return 

of tender deposits to the Bidders; and 
g. The tender deposit or bid bond may be used to mitigate costs or damages to the Corporation 

where a successful Bidder fails to execute the contract, or furnish any required documents 
within ten calendar days or as specified within the tender documents after notice to them to 
do so, or where a Bidder withdraws their tender after tenders have been opened. 
 

27. The Procurement Analyst shall review all tender documents for quality assurance purposes, with 
technical assistance from the Purchasing Agent.  All tender documents, where applicable shall be 
issued in a standardized format, and will have clearly stated criteria and specifications, defined quality 
and servicing standards.  All tender documents shall include the following items: 
 

a. Terms and conditions of the specific tender as well as the Township’s standard terms and 
conditions document; 

b. The tender form, which provides the following: 
i. A statement by the Bidder that the Bidder reviewed and understands the tender 

documents and that the Bidder is capable of and willing to perform the requirements 
of the contract and enter into a legal agreement with the Corporation in regard 
thereto; 



Page | 5  
 

ii. An execution by the Bidder.  Where the tender is submitted by a corporation, it shall 
be signed by the duly authorized officer(s) of the corporation, or in the case of a 
partnership, by all signing partners; 

iii. Irrevocable period of the tender response; 
iv. The time limit for signing the contract shall be clearly stated; and 
v. The following terms and conditions: 

1. “The Corporation of the Township of Wilmot reserves the right in its sole 
discretion, to reject any or all bids, and the lowest or highest bid, as the case 
may be, will not necessarily be accepted.” 

2. “Notwithstanding and without restricting the generality of the statement 
immediately above, the Township of Wilmot shall not be required to award or 
accept a tender, or recall the tenders at a later date if the tenders: 

a. Do not meet the specifications of the Tender Terms and Conditions; 
b. Are too high based on estimated costs of the goods or services; 
c. Are too low based on estimated costs of the goods or services; 
d. Are submitted late; 
e. Are illegible or incomprehensible; 
f. Are not signed and sealed; 
g. Are from an ineligible bidder; or 
h. Will not be completed as outlined within the tender documents, in the 

opinion of the Purchasing Agent. 
c. Special provisions where applicable; and 
d. Specifications 

 
28. Tender submissions to the Township are to: 

a. Be signed and submitted in the time and manner required by the Township,  
b. Be in a sealed envelope referencing the following: 

i. Name and Address of the Township; 
ii. The official that has been designated to receive tenders; 
iii. The closing date and time; 
iv. The contract or tender number; and 
v. The name and general description of the tender 

c. Include evidence of good standing with WSIB; 
d. Include bonding or deposit, when applicable; 
e. Include the unit cost and/or hourly rate; 
f. Include the total cost of like items or total cost for hours required to complete task; 
g. Include the freight charges; 
h. Include any applicable travel expenses; 
i. Itemize other sundry expenses; 
j. Include all applicable taxes; and 
k. Include the Total cost of the Tender 

 
29. Where it is deemed necessary invitations to tender and Request for Quotation or Proposal 

(RFQ/RFP) may be sent to potential Bidders by the Purchasing Agent or designate, to ensure the 
best possible response to the call, and the Procurement Analyst shall be notified accordingly. 

 
30. Where it is deemed necessary by the Corporation to revise the tender documents or extend the 

closing date, an addendum shall be forwarded by the Procurement Analyst to every person who 
obtained tender documents for the contract and/or posted on the Township website.  The addendum 
shall be attached to all tender forms not yet distributed.  Where an addendum is prepared too late to 
allow notification by mail, every person who obtained tender documents for the contract shall be 
notified by telephone, facsimile, or technological equivalent. 

 
31. Where it is deemed necessary by the Corporation to cancel a tender call, the Procurement Analyst 

will ensure an advertisement shall be placed in the electronic medium and/or publication in which the 
original advertisement appeared stating that the tender call has been cancelled and every person 
who obtained tender documents shall be notified by telephone, facsimile or technological equivalent 
of the cancellation.  Where a tender call is cancelled prior to closing, no tenders shall be accepted.  
All tenders received shall be returned unopened by registered mail with a covering letter. 

 
32. All Bidder inquiries should be sent via facsimile or e-mail to the Procurement Analyst, who shall 

obtain a response from the Purchasing Agent.  These questions and their respective answers shall be 
posted on the Township website for review by all bidders prior to closing.  Any questions occurring 
during Bidders’ meetings, site visits or information sessions will be treated in the same fashion where 
possible. 

 
33. The Procurement Analyst shall maintain a list of all bid takers.  This list shall be updated on the 

Township website.   
 

34. Every tender envelope received shall be noted with the date and time received, initialed by the 
Procurement Analyst and forthwith deposited unopened in the secured tender container. 

 
35. Tenders received after the closing time shall be returned unopened to the Bidder by the Treasurer or 

designate, together with a covering letter. 
 



Page | 6  
 

36. Tenders shall be opened at the appointed time in the presence of any member of the public in 
attendance for the opening, the Purchasing Agent that requested the tender, the Procurement Analyst 
or designate(s), and a witness. 

 
37. The Procurement Analyst or Purchasing Agent or designate(s) shall announce for each contract the 

contract number, contract description, the name of the Bidder, the total amount of the tender, and 
shall prepare a summary thereof on a standardized form signed by Purchasing Agent, Procurement 
Analyst and witness. The unofficial bid results will be posted to the Township website for the public. 

 
38. Where two or more tenders are submitted in the same tender envelope, the one bearing the lowest 

price shall be considered as the tender. 
 

39. Where two or more tenders are submitted by the same bidder, and no withdrawal request has been 
received, only the bid received at the latest time shall be considered. 

 
40. The Purchasing Agent or Procurement Analyst, following approval of Council of the award of the 

contract, shall notify the successful Bidder.  Where a formal contract is required and approved, it shall 
be submitted to the successful Bidder for execution. 

 

 
 
41. Where a contract has been awarded and the successful Bidder fails to execute the contract or any 

other required documents within the specified time, the CAO may: 
 
a. Grant the successful Bidder additional time to fulfill the requirements; or 
b. Award the contract to the second most qualified bidder. 

 
42. Where the Corporation contracts work out in an agreement with the private sector, the policies and 

procedures of the Corporation will prevail in all tender, quotation and proposal calls. 
 

PROPOSALS 
 

43. Requests for Proposals (RFP) may be called when the requirement for goods or services needed 
cannot be definitely specified.  In these cases a proposal call will be made to obtain specific offers 
from Bidders to fulfill the requirements for the goods and services at a particular price. 
 

44. Requests for Proposals, where applicable shall be issued in a standardized format, and will: 
 
a. Clearly establish required project outcome or requirements and contain existing conditions if 

applicable; 
b. Specifically outline response requirements at time of proposal receipt; and 
c. Clearly outline the ‘evaluation criteria’. 

 
45. In the case of RFP’s, these submissions will be opened by the Purchasing Agent or designate, and 

their receipt acknowledged.  Prices for proposals will not be disclosed.  The list of proponents will be 
posted to the Township website. 

 
46. Proposal values or contents of vendor proposal response and evaluation comments from the 

selection committee will not be disclosed and will be held in confidence. Scoring activities of the 
Selection Committee will also be held in strict confidence until after the award of contract.   
 

47. Requests for Proposals may include requests for initial expressions of interest from consultants and 
the subsequent submission of detailed proposals. 

 
48. Proposals for other than consulting services shall be called in accordance with the Procurement By-

Law, evaluated by an appropriate selection committee and awarded in keeping with proper 
purchasing and tendering procedures. 

 
49. Proposals for any type of consulting services shall be called and managed according to the 

‘Consultants’ section of this By-law. 
 
CONSULTANTS 
 

50. The Methods of Procurement regarding use of Consultants are summarized in ‘Schedule A’ of this 
By-law. 
 

51. Where the requirement for Consultant Services is estimated to cost less than $10,000.00, the 
Purchasing Agent will select the Consultant, and notify the CAO of this selection. 
 

52. Where the requirement for Consultant Services is estimated to cost $10,000.00 or more, but less 
than $20,000.00, a minimum of three written proposals are required.  The selection shall be made by 
the Purchasing Agent, and final approval of the selection shall be provided by the CAO.   

 



Page | 7  
 

 
 
 

53. Where the requirement for Consultant Services is estimated to cost $20,000.00 or more, a minimum 
of three written proposals are required.  The selection shall be made by the Purchasing Agent and 
reviewed by the CAO, prior to being presented in report format to Council for approval of the 
Consultant choice. 

 
TERM CONTRACTS 

 
54. Where it is deemed to be beneficial to the Corporation, term contracts shall be issued for on-going 

services required by the Township.  These services include, but are not limited to, custodial services, 
grass cutting, plumbing/electrical or HVAC maintenance agreements, audit services, banking 
services, IT consulting services, animal control, veterinary services, winter maintenance of parking 
lots, and municipal drainage superintendent services. 
 

55. Term contracts shall follow the same procurement processes as tenders and proposals do for one-
time items. 

 
56. Term contracts will be maintained on file by the Procurement Analyst and Purchasing Agent. 

 
57. Term contracts and any renewals thereto shall not exceed a 5-year term.  Renewals within the 5-year 

term that avoid re-tendering the contract must be justified and approved by the CAO. 
 

SPECIFICATIONS 
 

58. Purchasing Agents shall be responsible to prepare and provide to the Procurement Analyst, 
specifications when required as part of the tender and proposal documents.   
 

59. Purchasing Agents shall review their contracts and tender specifications for goods and services, to 
ensure that wherever possible and economical, specifications are amended to provide for expanded 
use of products and services that contain post-consumer recyclable waste and/or recyclable content 
to the maximum level allowable, without significantly affecting the intended use or performance of the 
product or service.  It is also recognized that a cost analysis may be required in order to ensure that 
the products are made available at competitive prices in order to increase the development and 
awareness of Environmentally Sound Products. 

 
60. When preparing specifications for good or services for the Township, the Purchasing Agent shall 

have regard to accessibility for persons with disabilities to the goods or services. 
 

CO-OPERATIVE PURCHASING 
 

61. Purchasing through co-operatives, such as the Co-op Purchasing Group of Waterloo Region 
(CPGWR), joint ventures, joint contracts and other such ventures are encouraged and may be used, 
if in the opinion of the Senior Management Team, such purchases ensure the procurement of 
supplies and services that meet the objectives of this By-law. 
 

62. Purchases made through co-operative buying procedures involving the Corporation require approval 
of Council only where the Corporation’s portion of the purchase will be or exceeds $50,000.00 in 
value, excluding taxes and freight. 
 
ADVERTISING 
 

63. The Procurement Analyst shall ensure that advertising for all formal tenders, quotations or proposals, 
is placed on the Township website and social media. Advertisements may also be placed in third-
party mediums (i.e. Newspaper, Industry Newsletter, etc.) at the discretion of the Purchasing Agent. 
 

64. The advertising shall be advertised at least ten working days prior to the closing date, unless 
otherwise directed by Council. 

 
65. The Procurement Analyst or designate shall review all advertisements prepared by the Purchasing 

Agent, prior to posting.  The following contents shall be included in every tender advertisement: 
 
a. The name of the Corporation; 
b. The contract or tender number as assigned by the Procurement Analyst; 
c. A general description of tender complete with securities required; 
d. The official designated to receive responses; 
e. The date and time of closing and any mandatory Bidder’s meetings or site visits; 
f. The location of the performance of the contract; 
g. A statement that the lowest or any tender will not necessarily be accepted; and 
h. Fax number and e-mail address for vendor inquiries 

 
66. Where it is deemed beneficial to the Corporation to pre-qualify bidders for any tender or proposal, a 

formal Request for Pre-Qualification (RFPQ) will be completed.  This RFPQ will be advertised in the 
same manner as any other tender or proposal. Through the RFPQ process, the Purchasing Agent will 



Page | 8  
 

determine the eligible bidders to bid on the formal tender or proposal. This list of eligible bidders must 
be approved by the Treasurer, and subsequently be submitted to the Procurement Analyst for 
distribution and receipt of bid documents. 

 
EMERGENCY PURCHASES 

 
67. When an emergency occurs, the Treasurer has the authority to issue a Purchase Order, upon 

receiving written or verbal request from a Purchasing Agent, for the goods and services required. 
 

68. After the emergency is over, any expenditure over and above this By-law’s authorization, shall be 
reported according to the requirements of the By-law. 

 
69. Emergency purchases must have regard for the provisions of this By-law and related procedures 

wherever practical, and must be concluded as swiftly and cost effectively as possible. 
 

PHASED ACQUISITION PROCESS 
 

70. The Township may consider a phased process for acquisition or service provision if: 
 

a. Detailed specifications are not available or it is impractical to prepare specifications based on 
price; 

b. The project is of a significant nature and is a long-term project; and/or 
c. The project may be broken into various project phases. 

 
71. The phased purchasing process may take a number of forms, depending on the complexity and 

requirements of the Township at the time requisitions are being considered.   
 

72. Phased acquisitions must have regard for the provisions of this By-law and related procedures 
wherever practical, and must be approved by Council where applicable. 

 
PURCHASE BY NEGOTIATIONS 
 

73. The Purchasing Agent may under the following conditions negotiate with one or more Bidders and in 
such cases the requirement for inviting tenders or quotations is waived: 
 

a. When in the judgment of the Purchasing Agent, goods are judged to be in short supply due to 
market conditions; 

b. Where there is only one source of supply for the goods or services; 
c. Where two or more identical bids have been received; 
d. Where the lowest tender or quotation meeting specifications substantially exceeds the 

estimated cost and it is impractical to recall the tender or quotation; 
e. When all bids received fail to meet the specification of tender terms and conditions and it is 

impractical to recall tenders or quotations; 
f. When no bids are received in the tender or quotation call; or 
g. When only one bid received in a tender or quotation. 

 
74. When negotiations are deemed necessary they shall be carried out in consultation with the Treasurer. 

 
75. Any negotiated purchase contract for $50,000.00 or more in value, excluding taxes and freight, shall 

be subject to approval from Council. 
 

76. The methods of negotiation shall be those accepted as standard negotiating procedures that employ 
fair ethical practices, as outlined in the Purchasing Code of Ethics of the Purchasing Management 
Association of Canada (PMAC) and the National Institute of Governmental Purchasing (NIGP). 
 
UNSOLICITED PROPOSALS 
 

77. Purchasing Agents may review unsolicited proposals received by the Township. Any procurement 
activity resulting from the receipt of an unsolicited proposal shall comply with the provisions of this By-
law. A contract resulting from an unsolicited proposal shall be awarded on a non-competitive basis 
only when the procurement requirements comply with the non-competitive procurement policies and 
procedures. 

 
RECEIVING AND INSPECTION OF GOODS 
 

78. When a shipment is received, the Receiver is responsible to ensure that there is no evidence of 
damage and that the goods and quantities described in the Bill of Lading are correct. 
 

79. In the event that there are discrepancies, the Receiver is responsible to note the details on the Bill of 
Lading and, if possible, the delivery agent should sign the Bill of Lading to indicate his/her 
concurrence. 

 
80. Bills of Lading, Freight bills and/or packing slips should then be signed by the Receiver and forwarded 

to Accounts Payable. 
 



Page | 9  
 

PART VI – CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
81. Elected officials and employees are expected to avoid actual or perceived conflicts of interest and are 

to abide by the provisions of the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act.  In the case of a tender or RFP, the 
Procurement Analyst shall not open and consider any bid from an elected official or employee of the 
Township, when the involvement of the elected official or employee is known, unless the elected 
official or employee obtains approval from Council prior to the close of the bid.   
 

82. The Procurement Analyst shall report other routine purchases from elected officials or employees to 
Council, when the involvement of an elected official or employee is known, prior to the award of a 
contract or the acquisition of goods or services, for Council’s information, without any action required 
on the part of Council, unless Council wishes to provide alternative direction to staff. 

 
83. No Council member or employee of the Township may purchase goods or services for personal use 

through the Corporation.  
 

84. Except in accordance with this By-law, no elected officials or employees of the Township shall have 
contact with a person, or any officer, employee or agent of the person who has submitted a bid to the 
Township, unless the bid call has been awarded, the contact is for the purpose of receiving a 
complaint or the contact is for a purpose entirely unrelated to the bid or contract. 

 
PART VII – SUPPLIERS AND SUCCESSFUL BIDDERS 
 
85. All suppliers and contractors to the Township are required to maintain confidentiality with respect to 

any and all work conducted for or on behalf of the Township.  Suppliers or successful bidders will 
direct any and all queries pertaining to Township business or activities to the Township.  
 

86. All suppliers and contractors to the Township are required to ensure strict compliance with any and all 
applicable Federal and Provincial legislation, including, but not limited to, Worker’s Safety Insurance 
Board coverage, the Occupational Health and Safety Act, Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities 
Act (AODA), environmental standards and requirements for the supply and transportation of materials 
and supplies, including:  the Transportation of Dangerous Goods Act, the Hazardous Products Act, 
and Provincial Legislation regarding WHMIS for hazardous products. All costs associated with such 
compliance will be borne by contractors and suppliers. Failure to comply will result in the 
disqualification of the supplier. 
 

87. At the conclusion of each contract, previously awarded by Council under a tender or proposal, the 
Purchasing Agent will complete an evaluation of the work/service performed by the contractor or 
supplier.  This evaluation will be held on file with the Purchasing Agent, and considered if/when the 
contractor bids for another project with the Township. 
 
SUPPLIER DISQUALIFICATION:   
 

88. The Township may disqualify any supplier or bidder for failure to meet quality, service, project budget, 
specifications, requirements, after sales service and contract adherence. 
 

89. Suppliers will be immediately disqualified when: 
 

a. The supplier is convicted of a criminal offence relating to the obtaining of (or, an attempt to 
obtain) a contract or subcontract. 

b. The supplier is in serious breach of a contract, or terms of contract, or unwillingness to perform a 
contract in accordance with the terms and conditions of that contract. 

c. The supplier is determined to have a record of unsatisfactory performance on one or more 
contracts. 

d. The supplier has made any slanderous comments about the Township on any public medium, 
included, but not limited to print medium, social media and blogs. 

e. The supplier is a party in a legal action against the Township. 
 
90. Suppliers will be notified in writing of potential disqualification and accorded a reasonable opportunity 

to respond.  If response is not obtained or in the event the response is deemed inadequate, the 
supplier will be placed on the disqualification list.  Disqualification lists and documentation on 
suppliers disqualified will be maintained by the Finance Department. Such disqualification will mean 
submissions from any disqualified supplier are not considered for a period of three years from the 
time the supplier is placed on the disqualification list.   

 
PART VIII – DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS 
 
91. Where any goods are surplus, obsolete or unrepairable, they shall be declared surplus by the 

Purchasing Agent or designate. 
 

92. When a Purchasing Agent or designate declares that no other use can be found for these items in 
other Departments, they shall be added to the surplus list at the discretion of the Treasurer, disposed 
through public auction, tender or quotation, whichever is in the best interests of the Corporation. 

 



Page | 10  
 

93. At the discretion of the Treasurer, and in consultation with the affected Department Head, rolling 
stock that is declared surplus may be offered, for a fair price, to the other municipal agencies within 
the Region of Waterloo prior to public disposal. 

 
94. Where the item has limited market value, the Treasurer may, to the benefit of the Corporation, 

dispose of the item in a manner other than the ones listed above (i.e. Donation). 
 
PART IX – PAYMENT 
 
95. The Treasurer shall honour and pay for all goods or services covered by a Purchase Order, Contract, 

Progress Certificate on Construction or other authorized purchase methods available to Township 
departments. 
 

96.  No prepayment of all or part of any goods, services or equipment shall be made unless provision for 
it is included in the Purchasing agreement as evidence by a tender, Purchase Order, or other form of 
purchasing contract. 

 
97. The Procurement Analyst may prepare forms of the certificates and approvals referred to in this By-

law, which will be used by all Members of Council, Purchasing Agents and other officers and 
employees. 

 
PART X – LITIGATION POLICY 
 
98. The Procurement Analyst or Purchasing Agent shall not open and consider any sealed bid or 

otherwise acquire any goods or services from a person with whom the Township is in litigation or 
pending litigation unless approval allowing such is obtained by the person from Council prior to the 
close of the bid call or the acquisition of the goods or services. 
 

PART XI – COMPLAINTS 
 
99. Resolution of a complaint from any vendor shall not cause delay in awarding contracts. 

 
100. Any complaint that the Township failed to abide by the provisions of this By-law that is significant in 

nature shall be reported to the Treasurer and the Treasurer shall investigate the complaint and 
report to Council as necessary. 

 
PART XII – ADMINISTRATION 
 
101. Failure to adhere to the provisions of this By-law shall not render any acquisition, contract or other 

document to be void or voidable. 
 
102. Council may waive any provisions or requirements of this By-law by resolution. 
 
103. If any section or sections of this By-law or parts thereof are found by any Court to be invalid or 

beyond the power of Council to enact, such section or sections or parts thereof shall be deemed to 
be severable and all other sections or parts of this By-law shall be deemed to be separate and 
independent therefrom and shall continue in full force and effect unless and until similarly found 
invalid or beyond the power of Council to enact. 

 
104. The Treasurer will bring forward from time to time, amendments to this By-law to update, whether 

adding new clauses or adjusting those currently in force. 
 
105. This By-law will repeal By-Law 2010-41 and shall come into force and effect on January 1, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
READ a first and second time this 3rd day of November, 2014 
        
READ a third time and finally passed this 3rd day of November, 2014 
                                                  

 
MAYOR____________________________ 
 
                                                 
CLERK_____________________________ 
 



 
 
 

 

 

 

ESTIMA

GOODS A
SERVICE

a. Un

b. $1,00

c. $5,00

d. $
$49

e. Ov

CONSUL

a. Und

b. $1
$

c. Ove

* Please 

ATED COST  

AND 
S 

der $1,000 

00‐$4,999.99 

0‐$19,999.99

$20,000‐
9,999.99 

er $50,000 

LTANTS 

der $10,000 

10,000.00‐
20,000 

er $20,000 

Note: 

TOWNS

METHO

TYP
QUOT

N/

N/

9 
Three (3

quota

Three (3
quotation
quotatio
deemed n
by the Tr

Sealed T
Prop

N/

Three (3
prop

Three (3
prop

Purchasin

of any ele

SHIP OF W

ODS OF PRO

E OF 
TATION 

  

/A 

/A 

) written 
ations 

) written 
ns, (sealed 
ons when 
necessary 
reasurer) 

Tender or 
posal 

  

/A 

) written 
posals 

) written 
posals 

ng  Agents sha

ected official o

ILMOT 

OCUREME

SOURCE O
APPROVA

  

Department 
or Design

Department 

Department 

Department 
& Treasur

CAO & Cou

  

Department 

CAO

CAO, Coun

all inform the

of the Townsh

NT 

OF 
AL  D

t Head 
ate 

Dir
wit

 Head 

Dir
by

Hea
wit

 Head 
Sy

t Head  
rer 

Sy

uncil 
Sy

t Head  
Sy

Sy

ncil 
Sy

e Treasurer of

hip in order t

Schedule 
P

Sch

PURCHASE 
DOCUMENTS

  

rect acquisitio
th "small orde
purchase ID 

rect acquisitio
y Departmen
ad or Designa
th "small orde
purchase ID 

stem Purchas
Order 

stem Purchas
Order 

stem Purchas
Order 

  

stem Purchas
Order 

stem Purchas
Order 

stem Purchas
Order 

f any perceive

to avoid confl

A – By-Law 20
Procurement Pr

hedule A ‐ Pag

S  REPOR

on 
er" 

on 
nt 
ate 
er" 

se 

se 

se 
Repo

require

se 

se  Repo
req
inf

se 
Repo

require

ed or known i

lict of interest

014-45 
rocess 

ge | 1  

RTING STATU

  

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

ort to Council 
ed for approv

  

N/A 

ort to Council 
quired for 
formation 

ort to Council 
ed for approv

involvement

t. 

S 

al

al



 
 
 

 

 

 

Purpose

Process:

Thresho

& Autho

 

T

M

:  F

S

h

  U

T

f

T

lds  T

ority:  a

C

C

F

F

D

E

R

U

R

P

C

TOWNSHIP

METHODS

Sma

For purchasin

System is des

hardware sup

Under this sys

This PO # will 

for future inv

Table ‐1 below

The Small Ord

and by Depar

Dep

Council    

CAO, Clerks 

Finance    

Fire Departme

Development

Engineering 

Roads    

Utilities    

Recreation & 

Pool    

Castle Kilbride

P OF WILM

 OF PROCU

all Order

ng of products

igned to strea

ppliers, electr

stem, a uniqu

identify the d

oice approva

w outlines the

der PO# could

tment Heads

partment 

  

  

  

ent    

t Services 

  

  

  

Facilities 

  

e    

MOT 

UREMENT

r Purcha

s in small qua

amline the bu

ical suppliers

ue P.O. # is giv

department a

l.   

e numbering 

d be used by a

 or designate

Table ‐1 

CO+ 

CC+ 4

FN+ 4

FD+ 4

DS+ 4

EN+ 

RD+ 

UT+ 

RF+ 4

PL+ 4

CK+ 4

sing Pro

antities or on 

uying process

s and other ve

ven to each e

and the empl

methodology

authorized re

es up to $5,00

P.O. Stru

4‐digit emplo

4‐digit emplo

4‐digit emplo

4‐digit emplo

4‐digit emplo

4‐digit emplo

4‐digit emplo

4‐digit emplo

4‐digit emplo

4‐digit emplo

4‐digit emplo

Schedule 
P

Sch

ocedure 

a frequent b

s at businesse

endors. 

employee for 

oyee making

y. 

equisitioners 

00. 

ucture 

oyee number

oyee number 

oyee number 

oyee number 

oyee number 

oyee number 

oyee number

oyee number 

oyee number 

oyee number 

oyee number 

B – By-Law 20
Procurement Pr

hedule B ‐ Pag

asis. 

es such as  

making purc

 the purchase

up to $1,000

r 

 

014-45 
rocess 

ge | 1  

hases. 

e  

;  


	Agenda
	Minutes
	9.2.1
	9.2.2
	9.3.1
	9.4.1
	9.4.2
	9.5.1
	9.5.2
	9.6.1
	9.6.2
	9.7.1
	9.8.1
	10.1
	10.2
	11.1
	11.2



